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Anniversary Lunch and Presentation

The photograph shows the presentation which took place at the Livery Hall on
Wednesday, 30 November, 1988 to celebrate the 25th anniversary of the Grant of
Livery. The Master, Mr. Douglas Read, handed over to the Livery an artistic work
fashioned in gold and silver, designed by himself and executed by Signor Sergio
Bressan, an Italian craftsman from Dino Marina. The piece (illustrated on page 3)
consists of a representation of Faraday's Ring and the crystal which is the central
feature of the Company’s Badge and the Mace.

The ceremony was attended by the Right Hon Lord Mayor, Sir Christopher
Collet, GCB, MA, accompanied by Mr Alderman and Sheriff Francis McWilliams
and the Sword Bearer Colonel J.C.M. Ansell, who took lunch with the Court and
several Founder Members. The guests were the Masters of the Tallow Chandlers,
Spectacle Makers and Clockmakers Companies. Liverymen present were the
Master (D.M. Read), Deputy Master (H.J. Kroch CBE), Senior Warden (C.G.R.
Hall), Junior Warden (J.E. Herrin CBE); Senior Past Master J.E.C. Bailey CBE,
Past Masters, G.C. Ottway JP, Dr. E.D. Barlow, D. Randolph, S.S. Carlisle, C.R.
Jennings, G.G. Zahler OBE, R.J.F. Howard; Assistants Dr D.T. Hughes, W.J.
Goldfinch, D.R. Coleman; Senior Stewards A.J.Harrison MBE, W.H. Medcalf,
F.S.B. Murrells, E.R. Tobitt; Stewards B.G. Atherton, R.E. Chapman, M.T. Dixon,
W. Lyons; Liverymen G.R. Rimmer, H.A. Mott (former Clerk), Maj-Gen E.J.
Younson OBE (Clerk Emeritus); and the Clerk (F.G. Everard).



ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

It has been my good fortune to be invested as Master of this Livery when it
celebrates the 25th Anniversary of the Grant of Charter and also to coincide with
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I therefore consider it to be incumbent to commission a book recording the
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untiring work dedicated to the collation of material and to Maureen Brosnan,
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D.M. READ
Master 30 November 1988
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The Master's Gift



The Master

Douglas Melville Read



DOUGLAS MELVILLE READ MASTER
C Eng, FRAeS, FRSA

1988-89

Douglas Melville Read was born on 10 February 1917. He was educated at
Dulwich College and first employed with Simmonds Aeroaccessories and
Associated Companies. In 1935 he joined 601 Squadron of the Royal Auxiliary
Air Force at Hendon and later served in the RAF as a Squadron Leader, joining
the Royal Aeronautical Establishment at Farnborough in 1943 and the Ministry of
Aircraft Production engaged in the instrumentation of the first Jet Propulsion
Aircraft.

Mr. Read was a Founder-Director of Société de Fabrication d’Instruments de
Mesure (GB) and of Electro-Mechanisms Ltd., which later became Schaevitz EM

Limited. When Schaevitz became part of the Lucas Group, Mr. Read was retained
as a Director and a Consultant,

Mr. Read served for many years on the Council of SIMA and as one of the
Honorary Officers, also Chairman for 10 years of SIMA Small Firms Group. He
was also responsible for the formation of the Transducer Group. He is Vice
Chairman of Thames Training Limited, Wokingham; a member of Advanced
Technology Training and Education Committee of the EEF; Industrial Member
of the Standing Conference on Schools Science and Technology; Regional
Contact for Manpower Services Commission Disablement Resettlement.

Mr. Read is a Life Member of the City Livery Club, Anglo Belgium Club and
Institute of Directors; Liveryman of the Engineers Company.



Origin of Guilds

The first were probably Roman, being derived from the early ‘collegia’ or
brotherhood of man. Some of the early guilds in Rome and other parts of Italy
were the dyers, the goldsmiths and the innkeepers. There is also evidence that
there were fullers guilds in early Rome and later in Flanders by the twelfth
century. Guilds have always had strong religious ties: they associated with
churches for several reasons. The most obvious was that most towns had a church
which was centrally located and ideal for large gatherings; a second was that the
people of that era were strongly religious and to meet in a church meant that they
would have the blessings of God; finally, associations with the church lent a
degree of security to their meetings. Rulers tended to be fearful of any large
group which could threaten their rule, regardless of the group's intentions.
Churches were generally approved of and thus provided a safe place to meet free
of persecution. After the Reformation, the guilds' purpose for associating with the
church became increasingly for charitable and social reasons than for religious or
political reasons.

European Guilds

Although Guilds originated in Rome there became many throughout Europe.
Other than England the highest concentration was in Austria and Germany,
particularly active in the city of Dusseldorf where fifty two still exist today.
Austria also has more than fifty guilds. There were guilds in France although
these were abolished at the Revolution as being secret societies; and in
Switzerland, Sweden , Denmark, Belgium and Scotland in all of which countries
they still exist. In the Netherlands, Germany and the Baltic States the Hanseatic
league flourished but without the aspects of apprenticeship and craft which
distinguished the Guilds. In order to obtain freedom of the right to practise a
trade in Scotland one had to purchase property and maintain ownership for a year
and a day. The property could be real estate, precious metals or any other
valuable asset. These unusual requirements made freedom difficult to obtain.
Mediaeval rulers disliked freemen since this diminished their own income. This
encouraged secrecy in the fulfilling of requirements to avoid interference.

Guilds in English Counties

Guilds played a more dominant role in the United Kingdon where London was by
far their main location. However, all English counties had guilds at one time or
another and many still have.

Kent had several interesting guilds, one of the earliest being a fraternity of parish
clerks in Canterbury. An unusual guild was the Trinity House Guild formed in
1512. This was an association that was responsible for taking care of the light
beaconsalong the coast of Kent. In addition they oversaw the operation of some of
the seaports. In 1836 the King granted them a charter to carry on the operation of
the lights and the ports as a business.



Lincolnshire was noted especially for its religious guilds. The first of these was
the Guild of the Blessed Mary, est. 1393. In the city of Boston there were five other
guilds which were of religious nature. Between 1550 and 1606 various craft
quilds formed. There were also religious guilds formed in the city of Lincoln.

It is interesting to note the presence of three German guilds in Middlesex and
that there was a religious guild in Staines.

Northumberland is located in the northernmost part of England, bordering
Scotland. The ancient guilds of this county date to 1283-84. The records and
charters of many guilds show signs of the border strife with Scotland. Most of the
charters state penalties and fines for either apprenticing or doing business with a
Scot. There are records of a very large and varied number of guilds in
Northumberland, leading one to believe that there was a disproportionate
number of guilds in Northumberland. However another possibility is that the
records in Northumberland were simply better preserved. These guilds included
bricklayers and plasterers, porters, ropemakers and cooks.

The Guilds of Oxfordshire were concentrated primarily in the City of Oxford. The
early merchant guild in Oxford assumed control of the city. The merchant guilds’
early control of the city subsequently led to their control of the other craft and
trade guilds of the city. The founders of Oxford University formed their own
guilds. Eventually they spread their influence to the city government and
eclipsed the merchant guild in power.

Bristol is in the county of Somersetshire and was second only to London as a
mercantile centre. It has a wide complement of guilds ranging from religious to
merchant purposes. The Guild of Kalenderies, established in the 1200's was
unique in that it comprised both men and women, who kept track of all events in

the city. By the first half of the fifteenth century there were thirty trade guilds in
Bristol.

In addition to these there were also guilds too numerous to recount in almost
every major City in England, but one must mention the Cutlers in Sheffield, still a

prestigious organisation, and the several known collectively as the Preston
Guild.

Guilds of London

London, an old Roman city, had the highest concentration of guilds in the world.
The first guild was the Weavers, established in 1130. In 1215 King Henry's son
John drafted a charter granting the citizens of London the right to elect the Mayor
of London. This is the first time that there was an elected Lord Mayor of London,
Upon his election the Mayor was to present himself to the King or to the King's
justices. This is how the traditional yearly mayoral procession began, which
continues today. It should be noted that “citizens” of the City were actually only a
small minority of the people. In 1319 Edward II granted the City a Charter which
stated that only citizens could practice a trade or craft within the city.



A citizen or freeman was someone who met specific criteria. He must be born
lawfully to a freeman father in the City, or apprenticed to a freeman for seven
years, or in some cases freedom could be obtained by redemption. The Livery
companies began to receive their charters after 1390. One of the privileges
granted in the charter was the right to wear livery. During the 1300's most of the
twelve great livery companies were founded. The Mercers, established in 1487,
were merchants trading in small wares and later wool and cloth. The Grocers
grew out of the Pepperers guild and dealt in goods and spices from the
Mediterranean. The Drapers were established in 1364 and traded principally in
cloth and drapery maerials. The Fishmongers began in 1272 and had a monopoly
on the fish market. The Goldsmiths received their first charter in 1327 which gave
them control over the quality of precious metals. The Merchant Taylors, also in
1327, regulated all the trade concerned with linen and tailoring. The Skinners,
again in 1327, traded fur. The Haberdashers, established in 1378, were originally
part of the Mercers Guild. They dealt in coarse cloth, underwear and later
outerwear. The Salters, first granted their license in 1394, dealt in salt, flax, hemp
and logwood, and chemical preparations. The Ironmongers were granted their
armorial bearingsin 1455, The Vinters, chartered in 1364, traded wines and other
related products. The last of the great twelve livery companies, the
Clothworkers, were incorporated in 1508. They practised stretching cloth over a
hooked frame and finished woven cloth. These twelve companies were far more
powerful than the remaining ninety or so guilds recognized today. Livery
companies were run by craftsmen and traders but were not trade unions - a later
development to protect, originally, manual workers. During the time of
colonization, the early 1600’s, the Livery companies were called upon by the
crown for large financial contributions, something in which they had very little
choice because the King could always revoke their charter. In the 16th and 17th
centuries, many schools were established within and without the City with the
help of the guilds and The City of London. By the 17th century, the larger
companies began to focus their attention on social matters more than
philanthropic and trade matters but began to lose their influence due to the
advent of the industrial revolution in the early 18th century. In 1694, the Bank of
England was established to finance the growing industry. Guilds were not
concerned with national needs, only individual ones. Their strict rules blocked
progress because they did not allow competition, so hindering technological
development. In September of 1666, the Great Fire of London desroyed four-fifths
of London including the Guildhall and forty-four livery companies. Guild
restrictions were lifted for seven years to allow reconstruction of the greatly
damaged buildings and business ties on an individual level. London started to
transform from a residential center to a business center because of the reduction
in population caused by the Great Fire, Worse still, in 1682 James Il rescinded the
citizens’ right, granted by King Henry's son John in 1215, to elect their own Lord
Mayor and Sheriffs. In addition, the livery companies lost all the rights which had
been granted them by their charters. During this period of great political
upheaval the guilds reached their lowest level. It was not until King James had
fled that things improved.By 1690, all the guilds’ charters and rights had been
restored by Act of Parliament.



The New Guilds

Guilds have survived to modern times due to tradition and the refusal of
liverymen to let them die, but their role has been modified. They no longer draw
large incomes from trade although properties accumulated by the older guilds
have become very valuable and yield large incomes. This income is to ensure
survival and to support charitable and philanthropic works which for many has
become a prime role. There have been continuing questions about the role that
the modern livery company should play, inevitably caught up with the role of the
City of London itself. The founders of the original companies provided the means
for care of the poor and aged members of the guild and their families. Thus the
charitable aspect of the livery companies was created. After the middle of the
18th century, they began to devote much of the charitable earnings to relief of the
London poor, to hospitals, and to religious and educational organizations and by
th(,; ?nd of the 19th century were making charitable contributions to the general
public.

Some older Liveries disappeared when their crafts diminished, but no new
Liveries came into being from the beginning of the 18th century until the Master
Mariners were chartered in 1929. During this time there were great social
changes and considerable criticism was directed at the privilege of the City of
London (extending to Southwark and large parts of Middlesex, control of the
markets over a radius of seven miles and of large stretches of the River Thames)
and at the wealth and secrecy associated with the Liveries. A Royal Commission
recommended in 1854 that the Court of Aldermen and Common Hall should be
abolished - but no Act of Parliament ever became statute. A later Royal
Commission in 1884 vindicated the Livery companies, finding that their funds
were well administered. In fact many had already adopted considerable social
responsibilities and encouraged the new movement in the expansion of higher
education. A group of companies subscribed to the formation of the City & Guilds
of London Institute.

The number of Liverymen was about 8,000 in 1900, had doubled by the 1960s and
is now over 20,000. The Master Mariners became the 78th company in 1929 and
were followed by Solicitors, Farmers, Air Pilots & Navigators, Tobacco Pipe
Makers (a revival of an older company without Livery), and Furniture Makers.
We followed, as No. 84 in 1964, were for some time the youngest compéeny, until a
group of nine more were authorised within a period of six years. This came about
through yet another enquiry into the City - the Wilson Committee - when
feeling grew that some of the modern professions should have the opportunity to
adhere to the older and cherished virtues of craft skills and personal excellence.
There are now almost one hundred companies, with other aspirants waiting to
demonstrate their suitability to be granted Livery Status.

Each company has its individual traditions and its own practices, but all share a
common belief and heritage: Chaucer remarked on the occasions on which all
the Liveries came together and so we still do - in Common Hall for the
Elections of Lord Mayor and Sheriffs; at the United Guilds' Service in St Paul's
Cathedral; and at the Lord Mayor's Show, when their elected choice presents
himself to the Sovereign.
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Mercers
Grocers
Drapers
Fishmongers
Goldsmiths
Merchant Taylors
Skinners
Haberdashers
Salters
Ironmongers
Vintners
Clothworkers
Dyers

Brewers
Leathersellers
Pewterers
Barbers
Cutlers

Bakers

Wax Chandlers
Tallow Chandlers
Armourers & Braziers
Girdlers
Butchers
Saddlers
Carpenters
Cordwainers
Painters
Curriers
Masons
Plumbers
Innholders
Founders
Poulters

Cooks

Coopers
Tylers & Bricklayers
Bowyers
Fletchers
Blacksmiths
Joiners
Weavers
Woolmen
Scriveners
Fruiterers
Plaisterers

Stationers & Newspaper Makers

Broderers
Upholders
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50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62

Musicians

Turners

Basketmakers
Glaziers

Horners

Farriers

Paviors

Loriners

Apothecaries
Shipwrights

Spectacle Makers
Clock Makers

Glovers

Feltmakers
Framework Knitters
Needlemakers
Gardeners

Tin Plate Workers
Wheelwrights
Distillers
Pattenmakers

Glass Sellers
Coachmakers
Gunmakers

Gold & Silver Wyre Drawers
Makers of Playing Cards
Fanmakers

Carmen

Master Mariners
Solicitors

Farmers

Air Pilots & Navigators
Tobacco Pipe Makers
Furniture Makers
Scientific Instrument Makers

Chartered Surveyors
Chartered Accountants
Chartered Secrtaries
Builders' Merchants
Launderers

Marketors

Actuaries

Insurers

Arbitrators

Engineers

Fuellers

Lightmongers
Environmental Cleaners



Past Masters
Founder Master ;

C.E.T. CRIDLAND 1955-57

Charles Elliot Tapscott Cridland, the Founder and First Master of the Company,
was born in Gloucester in July 1900. He was educated at Trent College and
Faraday Electrical Engineering College. Mr Cridland received his first
experience in electrical work while serving in the RFC during the first World
War. He also had a wide range of industrial interests. He was Chairman and
Managing Director of Aldis Bros (which he purchased in 1946), Aero Heat
Treatments (Vice Chairman), Hard Coating Ltd, Chrisholm Gray Co, Aero Tape
Ltd, Broadstone Ball Valves Co Bendz Ltd, Quality Machined Parts, Kinsman
Ltd, Hawkes & Snow (Curtain Craft), Portable Balers (Chairman), Automatic
Changers, Eclair Door and Mercia Builders Merchants (a public company of
which he was Vice Chairman). He was also Chairman of the Transport Users
Consultative Committee, West Midland Region, from 1963 to 1969; a member of
SIMA Council from 1945 to 1957 and President 1954-56. Mr Cridland was given a
special Senior Master's Badge on 21 October 1964. Latterly he made his home in
Spain.

Died 1983

Senior Past Master
J.E.C. BAILEY, CBE 1957-58

John Everett Creighton Bailey, a Founder Member of the Court, was born in
November 1905. He was educated at Brentwood School and trained at Peat
Marwick Mitchell & Co, 1925-1931. Later he became Chairman and Managing
Director of the Baird & Tatlock Group, 1940-1969. He was President of SIMA from
1945 to 1950 and Chairman of the British Laboratory Ware Association from 1950
to 1952 and President 1974 to 1983. John Bailey was Chairman, 1952-1964, of the
British Scientific Instrument Research Association; President, 1964-1971, in
recognition of which he was appointed the first Companion of Sira. Other
appointments include Special Member, Prices & Incomes Board 1955-1960 (an
appointment made by the Queen); Admiralty Chemical Advisory Panel, 1940-
1950; BOT Census of Production Advisory Committee, 1960-1968; member of the
FBI Grand Council, 1945-58; and Master of the Needlemakers company. For
many years John Bailey served as a Trustee and gave very valuable advice on the
Company's investments.

See also the entry for 1973-1974
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F.D. EDWARDS, CBE 1958-59

Frederick David Edwards, a Founder Member of the Court, was born at Dulwich
on 6 March 1889. He was educated in Dulwich and at the Northampton
Polytechnic, later serving in the Physics Department there. He founded his own
business in 1920 in laboratory and high vacuum equipment, which later
developed into the Edwards High Vacuum International Group of which he was
Director and President. Mr. Edwards established the Edwards Scholarship Trust
to assist hardship cases in the undergraduate field leading to degrees or
qualifications in Science and Technology. An Edwards Memorial Trust (of which
Liveryman Murrells is a Trustee) has been established and arranges an annual
lecture at the City University as a tribute to his work. Mr. Edwards gave
enthusiastic support to all youth activities in the New Town of Crawley and was
Founder and Chairman of the Crawley Sea Cadet Corps. He was also Founder
Governor of the Crawley Technical College. His interest in public affairs
extended over a wide field and included financial support in the erection of a
Parish Hall for Horley Parochial Church Council.

Died 1966

P.J. ELLIS, OBE 1959-60

Philip John Ellis, a Founder Member of the Court, was born in Harlesden in
November, 1900. He commenced his career in 1914 as an office boy with Joseph
Baker & Sons Ltd, Bakery Engineers,(now Baker Perkins). In 1922 he joined S.G.
Brown Ltd, (Scientific Instrument Makers) as Secretary to the Directors and was
responsible also for Advertising. He was later appointed Chief Accountant to this
Company. In 1932 R.B. Pullin was founded. They were Scientific Instrument
Makers and Mr Ellis was appointed Secretary and Chief Accountant. He was
appointed to their Board in 1936, becoming Managing Director in 1946, with the
acquisition of subsidiary Companies, Group Managing Director and Chairman
of Subsidiary Companies. He was a Liveryman of the Worshipful Company of
Clockmakers, was Chairman of the Brentford and District Disablement Advisory
Comittee and on the Committee of the Upper Thames Motor-boat Club. He
served as Trustee to the Company and gave valuable advice on investments of
Company funds. He initiated the first handbook in 1960. o diiii
ie
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Past Masters

1955 - 1957 1957 - 1958

C.E.T. Cridland J.E.C. Bailey
CBE
1958 - 1959 1959 - 1960

F.D. Edwards P.J. Ellis
CBE OBE

13



Past Masters

1960 - 1961 1961 - 1962

G.A. Whipple A.E. Evans
CBE MBE, JP
1962 - 1963 1963 - 1964

P. Goudime F.W. Dawe
JP

14



G.A. WHIPPLE, CBE 1960-61

George Allan Whipple, a Founder Member of the Court, was born at
Whittlesford, Cambs. on 9 December 1907. He was educated at Greshams School
and Trinity College Cambridge. He gained an IEE Premium Prize (now in the
Livery Library). Mr. Whipple worked as an instrument maker for E.R. Watts &
Sons Ltd, and afterwards in research laboratories in Berlin. On his return to
England he worked for the Cambridge Instrument Company. In 1939 Mr
Whipple rejoined his old company E.R. Watts & Sons (later Hilger & Watts). He
was Chairman and Managing Director of both companies. Mr, Whipple was a
great believer in further education and craft training. As far back as 1942 workers
at E.R. Watts were encouraged to read for degrees and attend classes in
instrument making. Arising from this special interest, he was on the governing
body of the Northampton Polytechnic for many years and until it became the City
University. He served as President of SIMA, was Chairman of the Technical and
Standards Committee, BSI and Chairman of the Instruments Committee.

Died 1973

A.E.EVANS, MBE, JP 1961-62

Arthur Edwin Evans, a Founder Member of the Court, was born in London in
February 1904. His first job in 1919 was as office boy in a City export company's
office. He worked his way up to director in 1934 and then started his own export
company in 1938. This was followed in 1939 by Evans Electroselenium Ltd, a
producer of photo-cells, which arose from his interest in early radio and tape
recorders. With instruments naturally following, his company gave the world the
first photo-electric colorimeter and flame photometer. Arthur Evans was a
Council Member of SIMA & BSIRA, Chairman of Halstead Urban District
Council, a JP, Governor of several schools, member of N.E. Essex planning
committee and associations. He was a Founder Member of the SIMA Export
Committee and initiated and organised their first post-war instrument exhibition
in Moscow. He was awarded the MBE for his export contributions. During his
year of office the first students were sponsored by the Charitable & Educational
Trust.

Died 1984
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P. GOUDIME, JP 1962-63

Paul Goudime, a Founder Member of the Court, was born in July 1910. He was
educated at Eton and Cambridge where he obtained an Honours degree in
Natural Sciences. While an undergraduate he designed a number of Air
Navigation Calculators which were used in the war. He obtained a Private Pilot’s
licence in 1933 and later became an A.F.R.Ae.S. Mr Goudime joined Simmonds
Aeroaccessories Ltd in 1937. He was Managing Director of Electronic
Instruments which he founded in 1946. This company was acquired by
Cambridge Instrument Co Ltd in 1965 and Mr. Goudime was appointed
Technical Director to the Cambridge Group. After the merger with George Kent,
he took charge of Minerva Detector Company, which had been founded by him in
1947. When E.M.I. bought Minerva in 1970, he became consultant to EM.L
Electronics and was appointed Technical Director of E.M.I. Marine. On retiring
in 1972 he set up Rigel Research Ltd and Rigel Instruments Ltd to work on
medical and marine instrumentation. Mr. Goudime was also President of SIMA
in 1957-58,

Honorary Assistant 1984 Died 1984

F.W. DAWE 1963-64

Frank Walter Dawe, a Founder Member of the Court, was born on 4 July 1905 in
Plymouth. He was educated at Finsbury Technical College and became a Fellow
of the IEE. He started work as Electrical Plant Engineer at Messrs. Edison &
Swan, then in the Test Apparatus Division of the Gramophone Co. In 1932 he
joined Messrs. E.K. Cole to set up the Test Gear Dept, which led to the formation
of Ekco Instruments. This division joined with a Marconi Group to become
Marconi-Ekco Instruments (later Marconi Instruments) of which Mr Dawe was
Technical & Production Manager. In 1945, Mr. Dawe founded his own company,
Dawe Instruments, from which he retired in 1966. He was Director of Teaching
Walls Systems Ltd. and Chairman of Lightomation Ltd. Arising from an interest
in model engineering, he formed a toy making company - Playcraft. Other
responsibilities have included Managing Director of Martelli Designs Ltd,
Director of R.J. Frost Engineering Ltd and member of the Council of SIMA. Mr
Dawe initiated the Achievement Award and was responsible for the preparation
of the yearly handbook from its inception in 1960 until 1977. In 1979 he retired
from his business activities and moved to Bognor, where he has been able to
continue his hobby interests in radio and model making.

Honorary Assistant 1984
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G.C.OTTWAY, JP 1964-65

Geoffrey Charles Ottway, a Founder Member of the Court, was born in Ealing in
March 1913. He was educated at Berkhampstead School in Hertfordshire. In
1931, he joined the family firm W. Ottway & Co where he was appointed a
Director in 1943 and became Chairman and Managing Director in 1954, The firm
of W. Ottway & Co was founded in the City near the Royal Exchange in 1640, and
although that building was destroyed in the Great Fire of 1666 and the records
lost, the firm was until recently handed down from father to son in unbroken
succession. Mr. Ottway was President of SIMA (1960/61). As Chairman of SIMA
social committee, he organised the first SIMA Dinner Dance. He is a Justice of the
Peace, a past chairman of Datchet Parish Council. Has been a member of the
MCC for 30 years and was a keen cricketer in club cricket where he took 1100
wickets with an average of 14.0 and which included 101 wickets in one season
(1953) at the age of 40,

L.B. LAMBERT 1965-66

Leonard Budd Lambert, a Founder Member of the Court, was born at Wood
Green, London on 2 January 1902, but spent the first part of his childhood in
Canada. He first worked for Cambridge Instrument Co as Test Room Assistant.
After gathering experience with various companies, he joined Negretti &
Zambra - then a private partnership. Following the 1939-1945 war, he was
mainlr occupied in promoting the sale of British instruments overseas and
travelled widely, fostering companies in Australia, Canada, Holland, India and
South Africa as well as many agencies in other countries. He was later Managing
Director of Instucon Ltd. He served on the council of SIMA and was Chairman of
the Export Committee for some years. In 1945, he was intimately associated with
the formation of the Society of Instrument Technology - now the Institute of
Measurement & Control - and after nine years as Honorary Secretary was
President 1962-1964 and later an Honorary Fellow.

Honorary Assistant 1984 Died 1986
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Dr J.H. MITCHELL 1966-67

John Henry Mitchell, a Founder Member of the Court, was born at Crewkerne on
18 June 1908. He was educated at Crewkerne Grammar School and Bristol
University where he subsequently gained a Doctorate for researches into
Gaseous lonic Mobility. He continued research at the BTH Company on
Discharge Lamps. He later joined the Scientific Civil Service working on radar
(first detection of ships), VHF Communication, and then was in charge of Radio
Aids to Navigation and Instrumentation. In 1947, he became Research Director of
Ericsson Telephones Ltd., and subsequently Managing Director of Bendix
Ericsson and Chairman of Associated Transistors. Later he became Engineering
Director of Hoover Ltd., and finally moving to Bournemouth became Director of
Astaron Bird Ltd. He finally became a Consultant Engineer and worked on
Research into Engine Noise. For many years, he was on the Court and some of the
Committees of Nottingham University and a Governor of Nottingham Technical
College. He was a council member of the LE.E. serving on the Electronics
Division, Papers and other Committees, as Chairman of the Local Centre, and in
1953/54 gave the Children’s Christmas Lectures,

Honorary Assistant 1984

A.W.SMITH, OBE 1967-68

Arthur William Smith, a Founder Member of the Company, was born in South
London on 20 December 1090. He was educated at Askes School, Hatcham and
the Royal College of Science. Arthur Smith joined Wray (Optical Works) Ltd. in
1924, became Director in 1928 and Managing Director in 1940. He was a Director
of Dolland and Aitchison from 1954-62. After Wray was taken over by Rank
Precision Industries in 1968, he became Director of that company and was a
Consultant from 1970-71. He was awarded the OBE in 1971. Mr Smith held many
wide ranging appointments, including President of SIMA - President BPMA -
Vice Chairman BSIRA - Chairman City & Guilds Scientific Instrument
Committee - Member Imperial College Optical Advisory Committee - Chairman
Lewisham Old People Welfare Association (1948-73) - Chairman Lewisham Old
People’s Housing Association (1951-77) - Founder President of the Rotary Club of
Catford. He initiated the idea of the Travelling Fellowship during
correspondence with Dr. J.S, Fail of the City University, With a special interest in
education, Mr Smith was a representative of the Company on the Governing
Board of the City University.

Honorary Assistant 1984 Died 1984
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JP
1966 - 1967 1967 - 1968

Dr J.H. Mitchell A W. Smith
OBE
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A.S.D. Barrett
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L.S. YOXALL, CBE 1968-69

Laurence Yoxall was born on 16 September 1901. Educated at Bedford School, he
turned toward industry about the end of World War | working in the aircraft
industry. After the war, he worked for George Kent on instruments and with an
interest in sales joined Walker, Crossweller who held a U.K. agency for Foxboro
eroducts. In 1931, Mr Yoxall formed the British Gauge & Instrument Co and the

oxall Instrument Co. A year later he took over the Foxboro agency and started
the manufacture of Foxboro Instruments in the U.K., leading to the formation of
Foxboro Yoxall in 1934 with Mr. Yoxall as Managing Director. He was later
appointed to the Board of Directors of the Foxboro Company. Mr. Yoxall was a
founder member of BIMCAM of which he was Chairman from 1951-70. He was
Vice President at the time of his death.He was Honorary Fellow of the Institute of
Measurement and Control and a member of the Board of Governors of the
Battersea Polytechnic. In 1971, in recognition of his outstanding service to
Britain's exports, Mr. Yoxall was appointed CBE.

Died 1976

R.B. BROCK, MBE 1969-70

Raymond Barrington Brock was born in London in August 1907. He was educated
at Eastbourne College and University College, London, where he obtained an
Honours degree in Chemistry. He started in business as a chemist at Imperial Dry
Plate Co in 1927 and became Factory Manager. He left to join the Ilford Group
where he worked on cinefilm, colour processing and X-Ray intensifiers. After a
short period with Dufay Colour as Works Manager in 1938, he was appointed
Managing Director of Townson and Mercer Ltd where he stayed until 1960. He
left to set up his own colour printing firms and became Chairman of a group of
companies specialising in this work. Mr. Barrington Brock is a past president of
SIMA. During the early part of the war he was Head Warden for the City of
London and was awarded the MBE for work on unexploded bombs. Mr.
Barrington Brock has taken a great interest in the production of British wines and
started the Viticultural Research Station at Oxted 1945-70. He was on the RHS
Fruit Group Committee for many years and was awarded the Jones Bateman Cup
for his researches.

Resigned from Court
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A.S.D. BARRETT 1970-71

Arthur Stephen Dennis Barrett, a Founder Member of the Company, was born in
London on 7 July 1907. He studied Engineering at Kings College with post
graduate research in high speed oil engines, becoming for a period a research
manager in this field. He later Joined ICI and subsequently obtained a
Fellowship to study Chemical Engineering at Massachusetts Institute of
Technology. This profound experience led himin later years to suggest the
Travelling Fellowship, in the setting up of which with M.L.T. he was especially
active. On the outbreak of war, he was recalled from America as a reserve RE
Officer but later released for the Atomic Energy Project. He was invited at the end
of the war to become Technical Director of Edwards High Vacuum and became
actively interested in SIMA and Sira. On resigning from Edwards, he joined the
boards of a number of companies including Chairmanships of Philips
subsidiaries. He has been an enthusiastic supporter of Management Research
Groups for many years and when Chairman of Council led the negotiations for
the linking with the British Institute of Management. He later became a
Consultant for Corporate Strategy and is currently Chairman of Chesham
Amalgamations and Investments Ltd. He served on Educational and Social
Committees and as Honorary Secretary of the Finance & General Purpose
Committee,

C.C. HANROTT 1971-72

Charles Cory Hanrott, a Founder Member of the Company, was born in London
on 10 June 1911. He was educated at Sherborne and Christ Church, Oxford
(where he was one of the first to read Engineering). He served in the RAF and was
closely concerned with the formation of Airborne Forces. As a Squadron Leader,
he also served in France and Germany and was mentioned in despatches. From
1948-74 he was Chairman and Managing Director of A. West & Partners Ltd. He
also operated a specialist screen printing company. From 1956 to 1958 Mr.
Hanrott was President of the Drawing Office Material Manufacturers and
Dealers Association and was Chairman of its Export Group for the first 14 years.
In the years 1960-62, he was Chairman of the Instruments Electronics &
Automation Exhibition Committee and was the first Chairman of the Institute of
Reprographic Technology His memberships have included the Grand Council of
the FBI and several CBI regional committees. He later became Chairman of the
British Overseas Trade Board Central London Export Club and received a
Jubilee Medal in 1977 for his services to Export. He was the first chairman of the
Livery Protocol Committee,
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A.W.JONES 1972-73

Anthony William Jones, a Founder Member of the Company, who was born in
1914, was educated at University College School, Hampstead from 1925 to 1931.
Subsequently he attended a day Engineering Course at Northampton
Engineering College followed by a one year Student Course at Standard
Telephones and Cables Ltd. Tony Jones started his career in the electronics
industry and in 1933 joined Orr Radio (later Invicta Radio) as an inspector -
progressing to technical manager. In 1938 he transferred to Pye Radio where he
worked through the war period on the development of RDF and Radar
equipment. After the war he was able to realise his ambition to start his own
company, Fleming Radio (Develpments) Ltd in Clerkenwell. By 1953 the
company had grown to the stage where they were able to move to a new 20,000
sq. ft. factory in Stevenage. This has since expanded to 34,000 sq.ft. In view of
product specialisation in instruments for telecommunication and the
environment the company was re-named Fleming Instruments Ltd. Tony Jones
was an active member of SIMA and after serving on the Council and also various
committees, he was appointed President in 1961/62. During his year as Master,
Allan Chambers was selected as the first recipient of the Travelling Fellowship
involving a two years study at M.1.T. and the Sloan Business School.

Died1975

Senior Past Master
J.E.C. BAILEY,CBE 1973-74

John Bailey was invited by the Court to serve a second term as Master of the
Company because of conflicting commitments facing both the Senior and Junior
Wardens. (He later had this unusual distinction also in his mother Company, the
Needlemakers). After the death of our Founder Master he became the Senior Past
Master and has continued to give the benefit of his experience and advice to the
Company. He remains actively engaged in the affairs of Sira and of the British
Laboratory Ware Asociation, travels extensively, is a member of the Atheneum
and a Companion of the British Institute of Management.

See also the entry for 1957-58.
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A.J. GARRETT, MBE 1974-75

Arthur John Garrett was born on 11 January 1916 at Aldershot. He was educated
at University College, London, where he received an honours degree in Physics.
During the Second World War, he carried out research on armaments, then spent
three years as Staff Physicist of the Festival of Britain before becoming a Principal
Scientific Officer at the National Physical Laboratory which he left in 1958 to
devote his time to consultancy, broadcasting and writing. Among his many
publications are: Energy From Oil, The Penguin Science Surveys and The
Penquin Technological Surveys. He has appeared in over four hundred
television programmes and was responsible for the sound radio coverage of the
Apollo, Skylab and Soyuz/Apollo missions. He is a member of the Order of the
British Empire, a Chartered Physicist, a Fellow of the Institute of Physics, the
Royal Society of Arts, and the British Interplanetary Society. He is a Member of
the British Academy of Film and Television Arts, the Association of British
Science Writers and the London Association of Engineers (honorary Life
Member). Other memberships include the City Livery Club, the National Liberal
Club and MCC. He now has his home in the Dordogne.

W.LOGAN 1975-76

William Logan was born at Ayr on the 7 October 1912. He studied at the Royal
Technical College and Glasgow University. He served in the Royal Electrical
and Mechanical Engineers during the war in India and the UK, later taking a
Short Service commission until 1952. His work was mainly in radar and
telecommunications development and he was very much involved with the
creation of the army calibration service. On entering industry he was Sales
Director of Avo Ltd 1954-66 and Taylor Electrical Instruments Ltd 1964-66. From
1966-72, he was apointed Research and Marketing Director of the Baird and
Tatlock Group of Companies and later became the Executive Director of
Rikadenki Mitsui Electronics (U.K.) Ltd. He was also Chairman of Logan King
Ltd and a Director of Environmental Resources Ltd, Precision Varionics Ltd and
Radiofort Sentek Ltd. He became President of SIMA in 1964-65, President of the
London Ayshire Society 1966-67 and was Chairman of the Instrument,
Electronics and Automation Exhibition 1969-71. He was Chairman of Scientific
Instrument Makers Hall Ltd and a member of the Board of Glaziers Hall Ltd.

Died 1979
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A.W. Jones J.E.C, Bailey
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A.J. Garratt
MBE
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Past Masters

1976 - 1977 1977 - 1978

Dr E.D. Barlow D. Randolph

1978 - 1979 1979 - 1980

J.R.M. McNally
MBE, JP
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Dr E.D. BARLOW 1976-77

Erasmus Darwin Barlow was born in London on 15 April 1915. He is a great
grandson of Charles Darwin. Dr. Barlow was educated at Marlborough, Trinity
College, Cambridge, and qualified in medicine from University College
Hospital Medical School, London. Dr. Barlow worked for the Medical Research
Council during and after the 1939-45 war on effects of injury. He entered
psychiatry in 1948 and spent 15 years at St. Thomas' Hospital, London, engaged
in research, teaching and practice in psychological medicine. He joined the
Board of Cambridge Instrument Company Limited in 1958, and became full time
Chairman in 1966. Following the takeover of Cambridge by George Kent Ltd in
1968 he was appointed deputy Chairman of that Company until 1974. He then
helped reconstitute the new The Cambridge Instrument Company and was
deputy Chairman from 1975 until retirement in 1985. His memberships have
included the Physiological Society, the Medical Research Society, the Royal
Societies of Medicine and Psychiatrists, the Bath Institute of Medical
Engineering (chairman), the Savile Club (chairman) and he has been Secretary
of the Zoological Society of London. He joined the SIMA council in 1961 and was
President in 1971-73.

Honorary Assistant 1984

D. RANDOLPH 1977-78

Denys Randolph was born in Ealing in February 1926. He was educated at St.
Paul’s School, Hammersmith and served in the Royal Engineers between 1944
and 1948, being demobilised as captain. From 1948 to 1952, he continued his
studies at Queen’s University, Belfast, graduating as aMechanical Engineer, and
then became a Post-Graduate apprentice with Short Brothers and Harland,
where he became assistant to the General Manager. In 1955, he joined Wilkinson
Sword as Production Engineer in the Graviner Division (development,
manufacture and sales of aircraft and industrial fire protection equipment) and
progressively increased his responsibilities to become Chairman of Wilkinson
Match in 1972. With the acquisition of British Match in 1973, he became
Executive Deputy Chairman and in 1976 was appointed Chairman of Wilkinson
Match. He ceased to be Chairman in 1979. Mr. Randolph is Chairman of
Woodrush Investments Ltd and Director of several other companies. He is Vice-
President and a member of Council of the Institute of Directors, of which he was
Chairman 1976-79, a Companion of the British Institute of Management, Vice-
President of the Institute of Industrial Managers, a Board member of
Management Research Groups and a Governor of the Administrative Staff
College, Henley. Denys Randolph has also been Master of the Cutlers Company.
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H.E. DREW, CB 1978-79

Harry Edward Drew was born at Old Brompton, Kent on 18 January 1909. He
received his technical training as an apprentice in the Royal Air Force and on
joining the Civil Service was one of the team at Bawdsey Manor working on early
radar transmitters. He was next Works Manager in charge of the Radio
Production Unit and rose to be Director of Electronic Production in the Ministry of
Supply, then Director of Technical Costs and Director General of Inspection. He
was the first Director General of Quality Assurance in the Ministry of Defence
and initiated the new Defence Quality Standards. Upon retirement he became an
industrial consultant and Chairman of Robert Stuart (London), a Director of
E.P.5.(R & D)Ltd and of Quality Audit and Advisory Services. His awards include
CB (1970), George Bray Memorial Lecture (Institution of Production Engineering
1971) and (Honoris Causa) Insignia Award for Electronics, City & Guilds 1974.
Harry Drew was a member of Charter Council, Institute of Electronic and Radio
Engineers (and later President) and was President of the Institute of Industrial
Managers. He was an Honorary Fellow of the Institution of Electronic and Radio
Engineers and of the Institution of Industrial Managers (previously Institution of
Works Managers). Latterly he was Chairman of Vision Broadcasting
International.

Died 1988

J.R.M. McNALLY, MBE, JP 1979-80

Jack Reginald Moore McNally was born on 15 December 1916. After early
employment at Dental Manufacturing and the Telephone Manufacturing Co,
Sunvic Controls and Electrothermal Engineers Ltd, with many patents to his
credit, he joined in 1963 Beckman Instruments Ltd, of which he was chairman
from 1976-80. He is, or has been, Chairman of Kineticon Ltd, Triad Ltd and
Scientific Documentation Ltd. He served as President of both SIMA and ECIF. He
is a Fellow of the Royal Society of Arts and a member of the Institute of Directors.
Throughout his lifetime he obtained experience in marketing, technical
consultancy for research, medical laboratory process and analytical
instrumentation. In public life he has been a member of the Glenrothes
Development Corporation, various committees of the CBI, the NEDO Council
and Fife Regional Health Board.

Honorary Assistant 1984
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R.H. DAVIES 1980-81

Robert Harding Davies was born at Cheadle Hulme, Cheshire, on 20 November
1923. He was educated at Emmanuel College, Cambridge and the University of
London. He did research on stable isotope separation and production at
Metropolitan-Vickers, Trafford Park and later at AERE, Harwell. In 1956, he
joined the Atomic Power Division at Whetstone of English Electric Co where he
later became Chief Development Engineer. He broadened his business
experience through senior appointments with AEI-Hotpoint and the Bowater
Corporation. In 1968, he became the Technical and later Managing Director of
the Cambridge Instrument Company. He then joined EMI Medical as Director
and General Manager of the X-ray Body Scanner Division and later became
Director and Chief Scientist. He headed the Systems Research Group and was
Assistant Director at Thorn EMI Central Research Laboratories at Hayes,
Middlesex. He is a Fellow of the Institute of Physics and the Institute of
Mathematics and its Applications, and a past Council member of the IMA and of
SIMA.

S.S. CARLISLE 1981-82

Samuel Skipton Carlisle was born on the 25 April 1919 at Londonderry. He was
educated at Royal Belfast Academical Institution and then at Queen's University,
Belfast, where he graduated with first Class Honours in Electrical Engineering in
1940, then proceeding to Master of Science in 1942, After working in the Royal
Naval Scientific Service on Radar and Fire Control development, he joined the
British Iron and Steel Research Association in 1946 initially as Head of the
Instrument Section in the London laboratories. In 1953 he was appointed Head of
the BISRA laboratory in Swansea. In 1958, he returned to London to become Head
of the Physics Department and later Assistant Director of Research with special
responsibility for Automation. He left BISRA in 1963 to become Director of the
British Scientific Research Association, now Sira Institute, until his retirement
from there in 1979. Mr. Carlisle is a Past President of the Institute of Measurement
and Control and of the International Measurement Confederation (IMEKO). He
is past Chairman of the Control and Instrumentation Board of the IEE and has
served on the Council of the IEE.
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C.R. JENNINGS 1982-83

b. 1918 F.P.R.L, F.Inst.M.
Com.LE.R.E.

Liveryman of Company of Scientific Instrument Makers (1968) Junior Warden
(1980) Senior Warden (1982) Deputy Master ( 1983)

Companies: British Electronic Company. Royal Engineers. De La Rue Group.
Printed Circuits De La Rue Insulation. Thomas De La Rue Plastics Division.
Formica Limited (Director 1965 - )

Founder Chairman, Electrical and Electronic Insulation Ass'n. (1970), Chairman
Radio & Electronic Component Manufacturers Federation (1974/77) Member
Radio Industry Council (1975/77). Council BEAMA (1970/78). Council CBI
(1977/79)

Experience in manufacture of printed circuits and electrical insulation.
Member: Royal Society of Arts (Fellow). Royal Society of St George.
Clubs: City Livery. MCC. Royal Automobile. Radio Industry.
Sports & Hobbies: Cricket. Tennis. Gardening. Country Walking.

M.H.W. GALL 1983-84

Maurice Henry Willis Gall was born on 15 June 1926, the son of Douglas Crisp
Gall, a Founder Member of the Livery. He was educated at the King's School,
Canterbury and at Cheltenham College. After service in the RNVR, he graduated
at Pembroke College, Cambridge. He joined H. Tinsley & Co. in 1951 and in 1952
opened a branch factory in Canada. In 1955 he returned to the UK as General
Manager of H. Tinsley & Co, then Technical Director (1961-77). Since 1978, he
has been a consultant and Managing Director of Precision Varionics of
Cheltenham. Mr. Gall is a Fellow of the Institution of Electrical Engineers, the
Institute of Physics and the Institution of Electronic and Radio Engineers. He
served on the Sino-British Trade Council, is a member of the Naval Club, the
Institute of Directors and the RNSA. He has been Master of the Worshipful
Company of Girdlers and is a former Commodore of the RNVR Sailing Club.
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J.B.S. SAVAGE, TD 1984-85

John Buckingham Stafford Savage was born in 1916. He worked for British
Instrument Co Ltd before war service in the Royal Engineers. He was General
Manager and Director of Savage & Parsons Ltd, Chairman of Nuclear Equipment
Ltd, Administrati